
WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Monday, May 6, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, May 6, 2024 at 6:00 PM in the 
Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, 
Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also be 
made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting may attend 
in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 742 346 123# during the meeting to listen or 
comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and 
computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 3/4/24 

5 ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS 

» ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING – CONSIDERATION OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
APPLICATION: PROPOSED WASTE COMPOSTING SITE ON PARCEL #864505400001 and 
PARCEL #864505400002: Conditional Use Permit application by Natural Fertilizer Products 
(Applicant – Abe Sandquist) and Timothy A. Ericksen (Property Owner) for a waste composting 
site on Parcel #864505400001 and Parcel #864505400002.  The proposed location is about 3.7 
miles north of Hornick, IA and about 6.7 miles northeast of Sloan, IA.  Both parcels are located 
in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Natural Fertilizer 
Products (Applicant - Abe Sandquist), 414 Walker St., Woodbine, Iowa 51579; Timothy A. 
Ericksen (Owner), 2369 Buchanan Ave., Sergeant Bluff, IA 51054.  Property locations: Parcel 
#864505400001, T86N R45W (Willow Township), Section 5, NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 and Parcel 
#864505400002, T86N R45W (Willow Township), Section 5, NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4.  Property 
Address: 2553 Old Hwy 141, Hornick, IA 51026.   

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 STAFF UPDATE 

8 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

9 ADJOURN 

1



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – March 4, 2024 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 4th of March 2024 at 6:06 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for 
public access via teleconference.   

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/board_of_adjustment/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o  https://youtu.be/CB5-SP1eUPo?si=RDRbHEJL3OWK5Fe9&t=7 

BA Members Present : Daniel Hair, Doyle Turner, Pam Clark, Tom Thiesen 
County Staff Present:   Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Andrew Orr, Dakin Schultz, Adam Larson, Jason Klemme 

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:06 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Minutes 
The October 2, 2023, minutes were approved. Motion by Turner to approve; Second by Thiesen. Motion passed 4-
0. 

Public Hearing: To Consider for Approval, A Conditional Use Permit Application – Conditional Use Permit 
Application: Disturbance of Eathen Materials, Import of Earthen Materials, Crushing Aggregate Materials, 
Staging Crushed Aggregate Temporarily, Exporting Crushed Aggregate, and Rectifying the Site: Parcel 
#894632300022 
Priestley read staff report into record.  JB Holland Construction (Applicant) and James A. Orr (Owner) have 
submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) application to use the property located on Parcel #894632300022 in 
T89N R46W (Concord Township), in the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 32, General Commercial (GC) Zoning 
District, as a location to support the west bound Highway 20 project by using the site for the “disturbance of earthen 
materials, import of earthen materials, crushing aggregate materials, staging crushed aggregate temporarily, 
exporting crushed aggregate, and rectifying the site.”  The property is located east of Sioux City and less than 700 
FT from the corporate boundary.  The property is not located within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  The 
requested uses are acceptable for the consideration of a CUP and compatible with Sections 3.03.3 and 3.03.4 of 
the Zoning Ordinance including the association with temporary heaving construction services uses such as 
aggregate crush & screen (temporary).  The Woodbury County Zoning Commission met February 26th, 2024, voting 
to forward CUP to Board of Adjustment with a 4-0 vote.  The Zoning Commission recommended clear hours of 
operation, communication with neighboring church, and to include dust control mitigation.  Staff recommended 
compliance with all Federal, State, and Local laws. Staff would recommend approval.  Hair asked Adam Larson 
from JB Holland about hours of operation, and line of communication with the church.   Clark inquired about dust 
mitigation.  Adam Larson from JB Holland stated a contracted company will be doing the crushing.  He expects they 
will begin crushing within 2-3 weeks.  Crusher has a watering mechanism on it to reduce dust. They will work with 
the church to work with any activities, will not be crushing on Saturday or Sundays.  Hours of operation will be 6:30 
AM – 6:00 PM.  Dakin Schultz from IDOT spoke of similar project last year with JB Holland, there were no 
complaints with the work done.  IDOT will have day by day communication with operations.  Priestley has received 
a couple dust control and noise questions.  Staff recommends approval with conditions.  Motion by Clark to close 
public hearing: Second by Turner.  Carried 4-0.  Hair made a motion to approve the conditional use permit 
application with the conditions to include reasonable clear hours of operation from 6:30 AM to 7:00 PM, reasonable 
dust control mitigation, and the establishment of a line of communication for any possible interference with church 
events.  The applicants must also comply with all federal, state, and local laws and requirements applicable to this 
conditional use permit which will conclude March 31, 2025.  Second by Clark.  Carried 4-0. 

2



2

Information Item:  Proposed Amendments to Section 5.03: Floodplain Management Ordinance in the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance 
Priestley gave an overview of the new FEMA floodplain maps that will go into effect July 17, 2024.  Five parcels 
within Woodbury County will be new to the floodplain.  Staff will reach out to landowners about the change.  
Lending institutions require flood insurance for any new buildings in floodplain areas. 

Information Item – Discussion About the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2024 
Priestley summarized the work and gathering of information done for the new 2040 Comprehensive Plan, which will 
replace the current plan from 2005.  The plan is not an ordinance, but with public input, prioritizes and guides 
aspects of Woodbury County for future growth.  The Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing to collect any 
additional information.  Dates have not been set yet; the public will be informed.  Following the Zoning Commission 
public hearing, a recommendation will be sent to the Board of Supervisors.  The BOS will then hold up to three 
public hearings for more public input.   

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Staff Update 
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission has held several work sessions and meetings regarding the county’s 
utility solar policy.  The Commission voted to recommend commercial/utility solar remain in General Commercial 
Zoning Districts with a CUP process that could place certain conditions on permitting.  The recommendation has 
been sent to the county attorney’s Office for legal review.  It will return to the Zoning Commission before being sent 
to the Board of Supervisors for three public hearings.   

Board Member Comment of Inquiry 
None 

Motion to Adjourn
Motion by Clark.  Second: Turner.  Carried: 4-0.  Meeting adjourned 6:53 PM. 

3



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senor Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT – MAY 2, 2024
WASTE COMPOSTING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Natural Fertilizer Products / 

Timothy A. Ericksen
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit for 

Waste Composting
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Total Acres: 80
Current Use: Farm Land
Proposed Use: Organics Composting Site
Pre-application Meeting: March 20, 2024
Application Date: March 28, 2023
Legal Notice Date: April 18, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice Date: April 17, 2024
Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

April 5, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

April 22, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

May 6, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 864505400001 & 864505400002
Township/Range: T86N R45W (Willow Township)
Section: Section 5 – 864505400001

Section 5 - 864505400002
Quarter: NWSE – 864505400001

NESE - 864505400002
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Not in Floodplain – Zone X
Property Address: 2553 Old Hwy 141, Hornick, IA 

51026

CONTENTS
Zoning Commission Recommendation
Specific Description and Project Narrative
Zoning Ordinance Criteria for Board Approval
Application
Public Notification Information / Comments
Supplemental Information

SUMMARY
Natural Fertilizer Products (Applicant – Abe Sanquist) and Timothy A. Ericksen (Property Owner) have filed a conditional use permit application to 
request to use the parcels designated as Parcel #864505400001 and Parcel #864505400002 as a waste composting site.  The proposed location is 
on the east side of Old Highway 141 about 0.25 miles north of the point where 290th Street intersects with Old Highway 141.  This proposal has been 
noticed in the Sioux City Journals legal section on April 18, 2024.  The neighbors within 500 feet were duly notified via a April 17, 2024 letter about 
the May 6, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have 
been requested to comment.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. Under Section 3.03.4: Land Use Table of 
Allowed Uses in each Zoning District in the Zoning Ordinance, “Waste composting” is authorized for consideration of a conditional use permit.   At 
the review session on April 22, 2024, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 3-0 not to recommend approval of this Conditional Use 
Permit.  The draft minutes are included in the packet and the video/audio may be accessed at: 
https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/

AERIAL MAP

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 3-0 to not recommend approval for the conditional use permit application.  The 
draft minutes are included below which includes a summary of the Commission’s review session proceedings that occurred on 
Monday, April 22, 2024 at the meeting beginning at 5:00 PM.  The video/audio may be accessed at: 
https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/

4



2 5



3 6



4 7



5 8



6 9



7 10



8 11



9 12



10 13



11 14



12 15



13 16



14 17



15 18



16 19



17 20



18 21



19 22



20 23



21 24



22 25



23 26



24 27



25 28



26 29



27 30



28 31



29 32



30 33



31 34



32 35



33 36



34 37



35 38



36 39



37 40



38 41



39 42



40 43



41 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received up to this point and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal has the ability 
to meet the criteria for approval of the conditional use request with appropriate conditions.  It is apparent there are contingencies that 
must be achieved including the receipt of permits from the state including the Iowa Department of Natural Resources.  Therefore, it is 
the recommendation that this conditional use permit could be authorized based on the following conditions: 1) An archeological study 
for the project area must be conducted and the report must be submitted to Woodbury County that clears the location and the abutting 
area from a designation of historical significance; 2) The property owner(s)/applicant(s) must receive all the appropriate permits 
associated with the waste composting site as required by federal, state, and local governments and copies must be submitted to 
Woodbury County; 3) Any and all applicable federal, state, and local government laws and ordinances must be followed throughout the 
lifetime of the project; 4) Appropriate measures must be in place to mitigate any potential adverse impacts of the waste composition 
site on adjacent property including measures to address odors and any material runoff onto adjacent properties and those measures 
must remain in place through the lifetime of the project;  5) A copy of an access easement through Parcel #864505300004 or 
clarification of the acquisition of the said parcel must be provided to Woodbury County; 6) The waste composting site activity shall not 
occur nor be expanded onto Parcel #864505300004 without authorization by the Board of Adjustment.  (A new conditional use permit 
application shall be submitted for review by the Zoning Commission and the consideration for approval by the Board of Adjustment); 7) 
The parcels within the project area including Parcel #864505400001 and Parcel #864505400002 must be combined via the Woodbury 
County Assessor; 8) This conditional use permit shall not be authorized until the said conditions have been met by the property 
owner(s)/applicant(s) including providing Woodbury County with appropriate documentation for verification.

44



42 

SPECIFIC DESCRIPTION AND PROJECT NARRATIVE

45



43 46



44 47



45 48



46

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

49



47

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This conditional use permit requested is authorized in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  This request has the potential to 
satisfy the requirements of this ordinance as referenced in the staff recommendation.

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

50



48 51



49 52



50

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The proposed use appears to show compatibility with the Woodbury County Development Plan (2005) including the “Agricultural Goal.”  In 
particular, Agricultural Policy 3.5 is to “recognize the importance of livestock production and related agricultural businesses as part of the 
agricultural economy of Woodbury County” (p. 20).  It is also important to note that the property is within the Loess Hills and the 
“Conservation and Environmental Goal” does point out that “growth and development will be managed in a manner that conserves and 
protects all natural resources while allowing opportunities for appropriate development…” (p. 23).  Thus, with the conditional use permit 
opportunity available at this location as noted in the zoning ordinance, it is imperative to find an appropriate balance for the use to fit within 
the neighborhood if the permit is to be considered for approval.

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Conditions should be instituted that offer protections to the adjacent properties and to retain the character of the neighborhood.  As noted 
in the staff recommendation, appropriate measures must be in place to mitigate any potential adverse impacts of the waste composition 
site on adjacent property including measures to address odors and any waste material runoff onto adjacent properties and those measures 
must remain in place through the lifetime of the project.  Additionally, the property owner(s)/applicant(s) must receive all the appropriate 
permits associated with the waste composting site as required by federal, state, and local governments and copies must be submitted to 
Woodbury County.  This would include any appropriate permitting from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources.  As noted by the 
County Engineer, the driveway exceeds minimum site distance requirements.  It should be expected that all parking be on site and the 
property have appropriate security measures in place. 

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Based on the information received about this proposal, it appears the proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed 
and operated in such a manner that can be compatible with the immediate neighborhood and not interfere with the orderly use, 
development and improvement of surrounding property if appropriate conditions can be met to mitigate any adverse impacts from waste 
composition.  The staff recommendation includes several points that could be considered.

53



51

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Staff concurs with the applicant’s response.  

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

One of the conditions of this conditional use permit application should include the requirement for the submission of an archeological 
study that clears the area from any designation of historical significance.  At this time, there have not been other features that have been 
identified.  Staff recommends conditions that address any potential odors as well as measures for screening to address any potential 
impacts to adjacent neighbors.  All parking related to this conditional use shall occur on the footprint of the parcels within this conditional 
use permit request.  This request has the potential to satisfy the requirements of the zoning ordinance as referenced in the staff 
recommendation.

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

As described herein, the proposed use at this particular location can be construed as a service or offering to the agricultural community.  

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Staff recommends conditions that address any potential odors as well as measures for screening to address any potential impacts to 
adjacent neighbors.  All parking related to this conditional use shall occur on the footprint of the parcels within this conditional use permit 
request.  

54



52 

APPLICATION

55



53 56



54 57



55 58



56 59



57 60



58 61



59 62



60 63



61 64



62 65



63 66



64 67



65 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION

68



66

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing:

8 

Notification Letter Date: April 17, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: May 6, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 4

Written Inquiries/Comments: 9

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS WRITTEN COMMENTS

Glenna J. Tevis 2539 County Rd. D25 Hornick IA 51026-8024

Received two phone inquiries and eight emails about the process.  
WRITTEN COMMENTS PROVIDED BELOW:

Timothy A. Ericksen 2369 Bachanan Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Timothy A. Ericksen 2551 Old Hwy 141 Hornick IA 51026 No comments.
Merriel Dawn Miller 409 S. Pearl St. Moville IA 51039 No comments.

Deborah C. Sulsberger 2595 Old Hwy 141 Hornick IA 51026-8024 No comments.
Jesse G. Beem & Robin Beem 2829 Grundy Ave. Hornick IA 51026-8069 No comments.
Nathan K. Silknitter & Patricia J. Silknitter 2835 Grundy Ave. Hornick IA 51026 No comments.
Kimberly E. Sulsberger 2853 Grundy Ave. Hornick IA 51026 WRITTEN COMMENTS PROVIDED BELOW:
Dennis Gallagher & Lori Gallagher 2663 298th St. Hornick IA 51026 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following proposed conditional use permit for MEC electric and we have, no 

conflicts.  If you have any questions or concerns feel free to reach out.  Have a great weekend. – 
Casey Meinen, 4/5/24. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 4/5/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have reviewed the site and driveway proposed for the waste composting facility.   The driveway 

exceeds minimum sight distance requirements for access to a business.   I have no other concerns or 
comments concerning this proposed conditional use request.  Thank you for the opportunity to review 
the permit request. – Mark Nahra, PE, 4/11/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD does not have any comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/8/24.

69



67 70



68 

Abe Sandquist’s response to Glen Thompson’s questions. 

71



69 72



70 73



71 74



72 75



73 76



74 77



75 78



76 79



77 80



78 81



79 82



80 83



81 84



82 85



83 86



84 87



85 88



86 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

89



87 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

90



88 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

91



89 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

92



90 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

93



91 

Received from Abe Sandquist  
5/1/24 

94



92 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

95



93 96



94 97



95 

ZONING MAP

98



96 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

99



97

DRAFT - SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

ELEVATION MAP

100



98 

SOIL MAP(S)

101



99 

SOIL REPORT(S)

102



100 103




